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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT ~ ~ MAR ~ 4 2005.
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA ' : '

MANCY MAYER WHITTINGTON, CLERK

148, DISTRICT COURT:

" Defendant. |

)
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION, -~ ) .
600 Pennsylvania Ave., N.W. ). "+ CASE..NUMBER,; s
_ _ . » o
* ‘Washington, D.C. 20580 ) . = *5CV00463...
) Cﬂ  DGE; Ellen Segal Huvelle-f
) - DECK TYPE an
£
Plaintiff, ) itrust
_. 3 ~ DATE STAMP: 03/04/200s5
V. ) e ‘
| g o ) AT e
BLOCKBUSTER, INC., )
)
)
).

C()MPLAIN’I‘ FOR IN.]UN CTIVE RELIEF PURSUANT
TO SECTI()N 7A(2)(2) OF THE CLAYTON ACT AND ‘
SECTION 13(b) OF THE FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION ACT
Pursuant to Section TA(g)(2) of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18a(g)(2), and Sect10n 13(b) '
of the Federal Trade Commlssmn Act, 15US.C. & 5303) the Federal Trade Comnnsszon '
- ("Commission”}, by its undersigne'd attorneys, seeks a temporary r:estrajnipg‘order, injunc;ion,
~ and otder pursuant m Section 7A(g)(2)'cnjoining_thﬁ acquisiﬁon by defendant'Biockbuster;_zm.
: (”B]ockbuster“) of any interest in Hollywood Entertainment Corporauon ( ‘Hollywood”) untﬂ
Blockbuster has substantially ccnilp]ied with the premerger n0t1f1cat1qn r_epomn_-g requirements
~ set forth in Section TA of the_ -Clayfton Act. |
| - Jurisdiction and Venue
1. | This 1s a s_tatuto_ry cause of action against a party who féil:ed-to‘ file a sufficient |

premerger submission in this district.” This Court has jurisdiction over the defendants and over
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the subject Iﬁaiter of this action pursuant to S_ecﬁon 7A(g)(_2),of the Clayton Aét, Section 13(b) of
the FTC Act, and 28 U.S.C. 8 1331, 1337, 1345. | -

2. -Venue is proper-pur\sﬂant'to Section 12 of the Cl-ayto_n Act, 15 U.S.C. $ 22_, and 23
US.C. § 1391(b), and (c.), beéause .the cause of action arose in this district;, where Blockbuéte_r
failed to make a complete response to the Com_miSsién’s Request for Addiﬁonal Information.
| | Thf: Parties

3. ‘The Commission is an administrative agency of the United States government

~with its principal offices at 600 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW., Washington, D.C. 20580. The

Commission is-charged, inter alia, with administering the premerger notification and waiting
period requirements of Section 7A of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18a, and enforcing Section 7.

of the Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of the FTC Act, 15 U.S.C. §45,by preventing

acquisitions that may substantially lessen competition in any line of commerce in any section of

the country. Tﬁe Commission also is authorized to seek preliminary injunctions Wh-eneve; ithas -
reason to b’eI_ievé these laws are being violated FTC Act § 13(b), 15 U.S..C. § 53), and to;enforce
the Hart-Scott-Rodino Aﬁtitrus_t Improvement Act's feportin g and waitin g_peﬁod requiféments
(Clayton Act § 7A; 15 US.C. § 18a) |

4. . BIOCkbuster is incorporated in the State of Delaware with its principal place of
business in Texas. Blockbuster is the largest movie and Vi‘deo. gamé- rental outlet in the United

States. 1_t operates approxjmate}y 4,600 compaﬂy stores across the United States, and franchises

: approxjmate].y 1,800 additional store locations. Blockbuster asﬁmates its U.S. revenues for fiscal

year 2004 at $4.2 billion.
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- The Cause of Action
5. | On Decémbe’r 28, 2004, Elockbuster an’houncedits .iﬁ_t_ention-ﬁto. launchfa cash
teﬁder offer to i)ﬁrchase all of the outstanding shares of ﬁollywood in a transaction valued at
approximately $1 billion (including Blockbuster’s éss"urﬁptioh .of Holiywood dé—ebt ou-tstmriding)‘.1
HollyWQOd is.a leadi_ng Uni,téd Statés movie and video game rental 6Uﬂet, second only to
Elockbuster in revenues. Hol_ljrwood operates nearly 2,0Q0 store locations in the United States,
and estimates its U.S. revenues for fiscal 2004 at $1.8 billion.
- 6. -Section 7A(a) of the Clayton Act, as amended by Pub. L. 106f553’ 1_14 Stat. 2762
' (‘l‘ZOOO Amendments”j, requires pérsori_s with more than $100 million in total éssets or net sales - |
' lto. file premerggr ﬁotification reports _With the Comrrﬁssilo-n before.acquiﬁng, directly or in;
7 directly, more than $50 million injvoting securities or assets of any person engaged in
‘ manufactuﬁng. with 'totalw aésets or annual net sales of $10 million. As part of the Notification
and Report Fofm‘ required by Secﬁbn 7A? an officer of the ﬁ.]i_ng party must ceﬁify that the filing
1is “true, correct, and complete in accordance with the statate and rules.” See 16 C.F.R. § 803.6.
7‘ 7. Seét_i_,_on 7A(b) provides tliati‘upon ﬁlingké preﬁlerger notiﬁcation report, a party |
' wish'ing to make an acquisition must delay consummating the transaction_‘f()r at least 30 days (15
“in thé. cascof a pﬁre_cash tender offer) iﬁ order to give’thé Coﬁ]miss_ion an opportunity fo review

_ the transaction and determine whether to investigate the transaction further or challenge it.

! Blockbuster has modified or supplemented its offer twice since iis ongmal
announcement. On February 2, 2005, it announced that it was raising its initial offer of $11.50
per share (payable in cash) to $14.50 (payable in.a combination of $11.50 i1 cash and $3.00 in
- Blockbuster stock). On February 11, 2005, it announced the commencement of a tender offer to

- purchase for cash $225 million in debt prevmusly issued by’ Hollywood
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8. Section 7A(e) provides that, dunng thé initi_al waiting ;périod; the -Co;h'ﬁlissi.oﬁ
may request additional information or documentary material relevant to the proposed fransaction
(a “Second Request™). Thel effect of making such a request for additional information is to
extend the waiting_ period for consummatioﬁ of the 'gcquisition until 30 days {10 dﬁys in the case

-of a cash tender offer) after the date on which the Comnﬂssion receives a complete response. to.
its request fofad;ditional information. Id.; 16 C.F.R. § 803.20(c). A complete respéns&is one
that either: (a) sets forth all the inf_ormatiqp and provides all the docume'ntéry-matéﬁal required to
be submitted pursuant to the reque_ét; or (b} in the event a person is unéble to provide a complete

' response, a detailed statement of reas_dr_rs for non—bomplian_ce‘ 1n accordance with 16 C.F.R. §
803.3. Secﬁon TA(e)(2) further provides, that if a proper submis';sion is made under that lSection_, :
the thirty-day Waiﬁng_: péﬁod extension b‘ggi_ns, although it may Be further extended by a United

_ States district court oﬁ application by the Commi.ssion pursuant to Sect__ion TA(Z)(2), if ;Eh"e
acquiring person (in the case of Va tender offér} has not substantially.complied'with the request for
additional infonnatiqn. AJJ submissiohzs of additional informat_ion and-dbéﬁmentary material |

_Im'.ust be filed where designated .by the Commission or, if no dés-ignaﬁo.n is made, with the: |
Commission’s Pre—Merger_Ofﬁcé.in Washington, DC.

9. | Bloc.kbuéter’-s prOposed acquisition of Hollywood is a reportable transaction under
Section 7A. |

- 10.  On December 28, 2ﬁ04, Blockbuster filed a premerger Notification and Report
Form in connection with its announced inténﬁon to launch.a tende: offer for. the dutsﬁanding
shares of Ho'llyWood- As part of that filing, Edward B. Stead, Blockbu_ster’-s Executive Vice-

President and General Counsel, certified that the filing was “true, correct, and complete.”
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The Commission’s Second Request

11.  On January 12, 2005-, the Commission, pursuant to Section TA(ej( 1) of the
Clayton Act, 15 U.S.C. § 18&(6)(1)?_ and 16 CFR § 803.20, issﬁed to ﬁlockbusterla,Second '

X Requesf.l' The first. paragraph of _th_e Commissio_n’ls rec’}uest informed Blockbuster that “[i]f the
company beliieves that the required search or any other part of the Request can be narrowed in. .
any way that is consistent with the Commission’s need for docurnents and information, you.are. ,

-encourafged to discuss such questions and possible modifications.wnh tthommié.siorx
representéti?e identified on. the last page of this Request.”

12. | Included within this Second Request was Specificétion 17, which required
Bl.ockbué_ter to produce specific categories of data fof each compény storé relating to, fnter alia,
each store’s pricing, .no.n—pricc:a terms, incentive programs, late._fees, members]hip fees, discounts,-
and other benefits offered to customers. |

13 .‘ | The Second Reque_st also contained Iﬁs-t'mcti_on W, wh‘iéh instructed Blockbuster
to indicate for each qﬁestibn itis unable to answer fully, “why such answer is incomplete, the
efforts made by the'gom]pany to obtain_ the information, and tﬁe source from whicﬁ the-.;:omplete
answer may be obtained.” The purpose of Instruction Wl is to allow quckbuster to explaiﬁ ‘why
itﬁid.no-t_ provide certain information in re‘sp'on..se to the Secoﬁﬁ Request, in a way that the
Comﬁﬁssion staff rev_iewihg the response can rely upon in assessing Blockbust_ér’ s compliance

with the Second Request.

Blockbuster’s Response to the Second Réqucst-
'14.  On February 4, 2004, Blockbuster, thfough its Vice—Presidént and Senior

- Corporate 'C'ounsel, Judy C. Norris, certified_tinde-r oath, pursuant to 16 C.E.R. § 803.6, that it o
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had substantially eompllied with the Commission’s Secend.Reqﬁest by submitting the
information and materials specified in the Second Requeet.

15.‘ In the cour-se.' of reviewmg..Blockbu:ster’s response to the Second Request, the
C:omleissi_on staff discovered .that Blockbuster’s response to the Second Request-.“was Incomplete
‘ in.multiple respects. Most -eig_nificant, in terms of its irﬁpact-onlthe COm;nissiOﬁ’e Investigation, -
Bleck_buster, I its response to Specification 17(a) of the Second Request, pro&i.ded_‘ incorrect
information relating to pricing, in the form of rental fees, at specific Blofckbus’;er stores. Asa
resulﬁ ofa Bleekbuster “programming error;” more than 6.0,000-_ of the approximately ‘liQ,OOO
data pointsl eonteiﬁed in Bl'ockbuéter’s originalld_ateset were inaccueate._ The Commission’s
economics staff hed relied on that data to try te use econometric analyses to assees tﬁe likely
| competitive effects of the acquisiti-on in erder to guide-the Commissi.on’s.decieion-maldng-
process in connection with the proposed acquisition. .Hoyweverr, alt ef the staﬁsﬁcal_ analyeis that |
‘Commission staff had performed using that pricing data was fﬁtally flawed, end therefore useless
t.e tlw""Co_mmission.

16;_ Commis‘sion,staf_f-identified to Blockbuster’s‘counsel, 1'1_1 an oral conversation on
_F_ebniary 16, the “discxepancies” in the data that Bleekbuste:-had proifided.. Counsel for |
-Blockbuster. thereafter admitted, iﬁ an e-mail message dated. February 22,' 2005 that “a
Programuming error was made in collecting the -spec'ifi'cation. 17 data, so that it is inaccurate.”-

. Blockbuster eounsel attached revised data responsive to specifieation 17(a) to that same e-mail
- message on Pebruery 22, 2005 - 18 d_'aryé after certifying t_hﬁt it was 3in_ substantial compliance -

- with the Second Request. While updating its response fo_ now include the presumably correct
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pricing data, Blockbuster did not re-certify its substantial compliance to reflect the date on which
it had actualiy submitted acc'ura.te pri_cing data in response to S:peci_fication 17(a).

17, In addition to. the deficiencies in re_sponse o Speci_fic_ation 17(a), Blockbuster
falled to prov1de complete responses to several other Spec1f1cat10ns of the Second Request Por
example subpart (e} of Specification 17 requues the producuon of data regardmg ‘any- late fees
applied o late returns of rentals” for “each comparny store.” Blockbuster’s response to
Specification 17_(e), however, only provided data for appro-ximately_ I400. of the approximately
4,600 company stores it operates in the United -States Onlyina submission of late March 1,
2005, has Blockbuster prov1ded what appears to be the complete data in response to
Spec1f1cat10n 17{e) The original data disk, produced by Blockbuster contained 2 8 megabytes of
data and had approximately 65,000 data rows. The disk submitted on March 1 contained 96
megabytes of data and approximately 873,000 data rows. The original data‘ disk, therefore, was
missing over 800,000 rows of responsive inforrnat;ton.

| 18 - Timeiy. submission of the pricing in-formf;ttion required by'Speciﬁcetion 17(a) and

7(e) 1s critical to the Comrmssmn s economic analysis of the potential competitive effects of
Blockbuster 8 proposed acqulsmon The type of econometric analyses that the Commission’s
statf have appl_ied in this investigation are complex, and require substantial Commission
resoutfces. The accurate prictng data that Blockbuster d1d not provide until February 22 is highly’

~probative information to that analysis. The result of Blockbuster’s failure to, proifi-de- the_ accurate
data combined with its theory 'that its initial submission constituted substantial comp]iance,_
Would be to reduce, by over half, the statutory period that Congress has prov1ded tothe

Comrmssmn to use the information it is entitled to obtam from Blockbuster
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19.  During the time tﬁat the Commission would have had if Blockbuster’s submission
of data iﬁ_response o S_pe_cification 17(a) and 17.(6)..ha_d béen timely, the,COénnﬁss_ion Wouid be
-able to conduct the complex economic analyses that Wogld help infofm its decision making in
con-nec_tion_with._Blockbuster"s pro;ﬁosed? acquisiﬁon of .Holly'w_ood‘. .Because of Blockbuster’s
seﬁous errors, however, the Comm_iss_ion has not yet had a sufficient opportunity to complete

these analyses.

TheComt_nis_sio‘n’-s Two Notices of Deficiencies
| 2-0.\_  After reviewing Blockbuster’s response to the Second Request, Commission staff
: nOtified Blockbuster’s counsel in two letters, both dated February 24,2005, of the numerous
- deficiencies, iﬁcluding Blockbuster’s failure to comply Withlsﬁecificati:on 17(a) and ‘1_7(;‘:), that
had Becn i_der;t@fic;d m the Secc;nd Request. Each of those letters clearly states that it _cqnstitut_es'_a
notice of deficiency under _16.C_.F.R. 803.10(c)(2), and that therefore the statuté:_ry :waiting_pen'ods

specified in 16 C.ER. §§ 803.10(b)(2)() has not begun.

Blockbuste_r’s.lResDonse to the Two Notices
21. In.res_ponéé to the Comnﬁssion-’s letters, Blockbus_t_er_ counsel d;:]jvefed to the
Commi-ssiqﬁ on Febrliary 28 a letter challenging the Co’mmission’s position that Blockbuster was
not;'in‘ substantial complance with thé_S’f':cond Request. With respect to its untimely response to
Specification 17(&}, for exarhpie, Blockbuster took the position that the Commission had not
been: prejudiced by it,rs' failure to pfovide store pIicip‘g data on a timely basis, sf:_atingl that it “defies
imagination that the staff has been so impeded in thé invesﬁgation that a court should find Lhét

B_Io‘ckbus_tei was not in substantial compliance with its original February 4 response.”
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_22._ Blockbuster on March 2, 2005, flled an appeal with the Comm1ss1on s General
Counsel, pursuant to Section 2.20 of the Commlssmn s Rules of Practice, 16 C.F. R § 2.20, of
the notices of def;clengy that Blockbuster had received from the Commls_smn S represen_tatlves.
In its March 3, 2005 response to that appeal, the Commission’s General Counsel stated that
Blockbuster was notin s_ubsta‘n‘gial complianc'e' at legst until it had "comacted its failures to submit,

accurate data,

B_loékl%ustell' Has Not Complied With Its Legal Obligations

23. By faiﬁng 1o provide complete and accuratelinformﬁtio.n responsive o
Commission Specification 17 (as well as othér Speciﬁpations)-, Bllockbustér. has niot compﬁed y
with the pfemerger reporting obii gations set out in S.ectibn TA()(2) and 16.CFR. § 803‘\.20..

24. Secﬁon 7A(g)(2)f of the Clayton Act providés that -if_._‘any .person fails su_bstanﬁally
to comply with the notification %reQuirement of Section 7AEa,) or any-requést for the submission of
‘additional information or documentary material pur_éﬁant fo' Section 7A(e)(1).,' a United States
district cou’rt_; upon application of the Commission, "shélll éxtend thé Waiting period ... until there
- has been su})stantial compliance.” Secnon TA(g)(2) further provides that, upon apphcatlon the
district court " may order comphance and "may. grant such other equitable rehef as the court in
Cits discfetion determines necessary or approplia-te."

25'. As noted above, Bléckbuster has refused to fccertify.both its original Notiﬁca-tibn
and Repg;t Form and its subsfantial compliance With =th¢_~Sec0nd Reéuest. Moreover, c.oﬁnsel féfc_ -
Bldckbuster has refused evén to ackhowledge th_e deficient character of its certification.

26.  Blockbuster h_és stated in the press, and has stated to the 'Comm_is_sioﬁ, its.intention

to effect its prbpoéed acquisitio_n of Ho]indod-'as soon as pc')ssjble, indicating that gnles_s-the
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Commission takes action by r’ni_d~March"BIoc_kbuslter ﬁiil go ahead with .its acquisition and force |
the Coﬁnni_ssion_ to bﬁng suit to stop the tr__an‘sac"tion..' Thié_timing is based on Blockbuster’s
Febru.ary 4 certification whif;ﬁ, if un.chall-enged, would result in a termiﬁation of the sta.tutbry '
Waiting period on March 7, 2065 . | |

27, T_hus, unless enjoined by th_i.s Court, Blockbuster maj/ acquire Hollywood as carly
. as March‘& 2005. Accordingly, a temporary restrzaini‘ng order and an injunction enjoining
consummation are necessary to ensure I_complia.n.cé with the requiremenfs of S._.ectionw’lA‘ of the
Clayton Act and to give the Com_miss.ion and its staff the timé provided by Cdngress for.
_ evaluatioﬁ of _thé .proposed acquisition. |

WHEREFORE; the Commigsion pmyé for an order: -

a. | ‘Enjoining Blockbuster from acquiring, directI:y of indirectly, any intefest- in
Hollywood until Bléckbuster has conducted a.thoi_roug_h ée_ar-‘ch for responéive mate_xial anc_l
recertified its original N otification and Repo_rt-For_m, pl;ovided all responsive informatior_l sought
by the Coﬂm:nission n t'hé Second Request, recertified its substanﬁal compliangé with the
Commission’s Second .Request, and complied with tht_: statutoi‘y Waiting. peﬁbd required by
Section 7A of the Clayton Act; and |

b. Awarding such other relief as this Court shall deem just and apprdpﬁate.

10




Case 1:05-cv-00463-ESH  Document 1~ Filed 03/04/05 ...Page 11 of 11
Y’ : L) :

Respectfuﬂy Submitted,

John D. G*raubert (b.C. Bar No. 370670)
Acting General Counsel

Susan Creighton, Director
Bureau of Competition

Mlchael Bloom ~
Director of Litigation

Michael H.  Knight
Assistant Director

- Bureau of Competition

~ Federal Trade Commission -
600 Pennsylvania' AVenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20580
(202) 326-2475
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